
APPROVED 1 
MINUTES OF THE MILFORD BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING 2 

June 22, 2009 3 
 4 

PRESENT: Tim Finan, Chairman 5 
  Gary Daniels, Vice Chairman 6 
  Mike Putnam, Member 7 

Katherine Bauer, Member 8 
Nate Carmen, Member 9 
Guy Scaife, Town Administrator 10 

  Heather Nichols, Recording Secretary 11 
 12 
1.  CALL TO ORDER, BOARD OF SELECTMEN INTRODUCTIONS & PUBLIC SPEAKING 13 
INSTRUCTIONS: Chairman Finan called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m., introduced the Board and the Town 14 
Administrator and lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 15 
 16 
2.   APPOINTMENTS: 17 
5:30 p.m. – Solid Waste Contract Extension/Demo Transportation Comparison.     18 
Bill Ruoff appeared before the Board and reviewed a demolition transportation comparison noting that it showed it 19 
will be less costly to contract demo transportation with Waste Management than for the town to do it themselves. 20 
 21 
In response to a question from Chairman Finan, Mr. Ruoff stated that the cost for Waste Management is $38,752 22 
based on an average number of trips over the last two years. He stated that if the town were to do the work, it would 23 
cost over $40,000 plus a minimum purchase of three roll offs for a $23,000 one time capital expenditure. 24 
  25 
Mr. Scaife noted that currently the demolition is being shipped to Auburn and if something were to happen and it 26 
needed to be transported somewhere else, Waste Management would be responsible for the extra transportation 27 
cost. 28 
 29 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Daniels, Mr. Ruoff stated that he only consulted Waste Management 30 
and Casella for prices. He noted that 7 years ago he looked at this issue and found going through Waste 31 
Management was $80,000 less expensive than adding all the separate pieces together with separate contracts. Mr. 32 
Scaife explained that they received prices from the companies that had hauling capabilities and facilities to handle 33 
the materials and these two companies are the major local companies that have those capabilities. 34 
 35 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Daniels, Mr. Ruoff stated that the amount of demolition has been 36 
dropping; in 2003 there were 990 tons, which went up to 1400 tons in 2004, in 2006 there were 1072 tons, and last 37 
year there was 1030 tons for an average of 1051 tons. He stated he feels that the reduction is partly due to the fees 38 
that have been imposed and possibly due to the economy as people are not doing the same amount of remodeling 39 
they were before. 40 
 41 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Daniels, Mr. Ruoff stated that the estimate is for demo transportation 42 
because that was what he was asked to investigate and Waste Management would still haul the household waste. 43 
Vice Chairman Daniels stated that his intent was to find out what the cost would be to haul versus hiring Waste 44 
Management and if the town hauled just demo they would still need Waste Management. Mr. Ruoff stated the town 45 
does not have the capacity to haul the household waste. Mr. Scaife explained that the town would still need a 46 
contract to dump somewhere and he feels that the discussion last time was about separating out the demo but the 47 
town would still need a contract for dumping household waste. He also noted that Waste Management is providing 48 
the compactors and roll offs for the solid waste.  49 
 50 
In response to a question from Selectman Carmen, Mr. Ruoff stated that he believes Waste Management gives a 51 
better price because they have a better network in NH and he noted that they offer a very sophisticated dispatch 52 
system. 53 
 54 
In response to a question from Selectman Carmen, Mr. Ruoff stated that he was not aware of pricing that is coming 55 
out today below $70 a ton and those tipping fees that are less than that are due to old contracts.  56 
 57 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 2

Mr. Newton stated that a two year contract is an improvement over the previously proposed five year contract and 1 
he thinks the issue should be tabled because the Board does not know the impact of going single stream. He stated 2 
that the Board should have a least three bids and that it is not important to have one contract and if the best price 3 
requires two contracts then it should be looked into. He stated that the Board needs to do more homework and that 4 
the current driver should be utilized as a driver rather than working in the scale house. He stated that the Board 5 
should extend the contract for one year and then work on a plan.  6 
 7 
Bob Courage, former DPW Director and previous member of the Budget Committee, stated that previously the town 8 
would send a contract out to bid for household waste. He stated it is his understanding that when the truck was 9 
bought with five containers it could be used to haul demo material. He stated that last year there were 224 trips of 10 
demo, or 5 trips per week; 1660 hours a year or 12 hours per week for a driver. He noted that there were five trips of 11 
recyclables per week or 8 hours of labor per week for the driver. He further stated the cost of containers could be 12 
amortized. He feels that the town should be utilizing the piece of equipment to haul demo materials and if need be, 13 
buy a used truck as a back up.   14 
 15 
Mr. Ruoff noted the contract is for five years and the first two years the rate is flat. He stated that this truck was 16 
bought because the current trucks were not good for hauling and this truck was considered for hauling but at the 17 
time there were four recyclable roll offs. He stated that the truck can haul the demo but he is not recommending it. 18 
He stated that the town could put out a RFP but it would be a waste of time because it would be the same companies 19 
bidding as he brought forward today. He further explained that single stream does not necessarily have a bearing on 20 
the conversation for today. He noted that they charge commercial haulers to dump household waste. He also noted 21 
that they used to pay people to haul the scrap demo but now they are hauling it themselves because they have the 22 
trucks and contracts which is earning them more money.  23 
 24 
Mr. Scaife noted that depending on the commercial haulers, they have the potential to double the recyclables and 25 
going with the contract allows the flexibility to absorb the increase in higher volume. 26 
 27 
In response to a question from Mr. Newton, Mr. Ruoff stated that here is an exit clause that says that upon notice the 28 
contract can be terminated in 30 or 60 days.  29 
 30 
Selectman Bauer stated that she is satisfied that Mr. Ruoff and Mr. Scaife have done their due diligence on the 31 
issue.  32 
 33 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Daniels that any contract that extends more than three years be brought 34 
to the town for a vote. There was no second on the motion and the motion was WITHDRAWN.  35 
 36 
In response to a question from Selectman Carmen, Mr. Ruoff stated that there are other good companies but they do 37 
not have the same network and resources as Waste Management and Casella. 38 
 39 
Selectman Putnam stated that he appreciates the public comment and he worries about having only one truck to haul 40 
everything with no back up in case of a catastrophic failure. He also noted that he is okay with signing the five year 41 
contract as long as there is an out. Selectman Putnam also noted that he thinks that the Board should reconvene the 42 
Recycling Committee. 43 
 44 
Vice Chairman Daniels stated he is not comfortable binding the hands of a future Board that no one from this Board 45 
may be on.   46 
 47 
Mr. Ruoff stated that the past contracts have always been five years.  48 
 49 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Putnam and SECONDED by Selectman Bauer to enter into a contract with 50 
Waste Management. 51 
Voting: 4 ayes; motion carried with Vice Chairman Daniels against the motion. 52 
 53 
5:45 p.m. – Recognition of Fire Department Promotions.  54 
Fire Chief Frank Fraitzl appeared before the Board and recognized Jeff Carter, Michael Parkhurst, and Dennis 55 
Shepard. Chief Fraitzl stated that Mr. Carter is a 20 year veteran, was 2007 Fire Officer of the Year, and is being 56 
promoted to Deputy Chief of the Department. He noted that all the candidates went through a testing process 57 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 3

including a written exam and review by peers along with a review of their history at the department. Chief Fraitzl 1 
stated that Mr. Parkhurst joined the department in 2002 after being part of the Amherst Fire Department and is 2 
being promoted to Captain of Engine 2. Chief Fraitzl stated that Mr. Shepard has been with the department for over 3 
ten years and is being promoted to Lieutenant of Engine 2. He also noted that Mr. Shepard is the only on call 4 
member who has been to the fire fighter academy in Maryland and he is also active with the committee of merit.  5 
 6 
6:00 p.m. – Departmental Update – Fire Department.   7 
Fire Chief Fraitzl reviewed the department’s annual goals noting that they are a product of the strategic plan and 8 
include succession planning, leadership, training, and reviewing the time commitments required. He noted that they 9 
are always looking at ways to minimize the necessary time commitments. He also reviewed the training that 10 
members of the department have completed including one member who completed Fire Fighter I training, three 11 
members who completed Fire Fighter II training, five members who received EMT certification and seven members 12 
who received their CDL license. He also noted that a total of 2,500 hours of training have been completed during 13 
the regular monthly training sessions. Chief Fraitzl stated that the year to date call volume is down 80 calls from last 14 
year but noted that one weather event can make a significant difference. Chief Fraitzl reviewed the current apparatus 15 
status noting that the new staff vehicle arrived two weeks ago but is still in the progress of being completed. He 16 
noted that the future needs of the department will include a replacement for Engine 4, as this is an open cab 17 
apparatus which is no longer an accepted or recommended practice and a ladder and rescue truck. Chief Fraitzl 18 
reviewed the department’s current staffing noting that they are currently down 10 positions and will be starting an 19 
active recruitment process. He also explained that there are three AmeriCorps volunteers, two of which are part time 20 
covering four days a week and are assisting with the development of the CERT program. The last volunteer works 21 
full time and is assisting with public education in the Risk Watch program and car seat safety inspections. Chief 22 
Fraitzl stated that the department hosted the second annual recognition night with 120 attendees. He stated that 23 
awards were presented including length of service, two unit citations, Fire Fighter and Officer of the Year, 24 
Community Service, Meritorious, Leadership, and for the first time, educational recognition. Chief Fraitzl stated 25 
that the Community Emergency Response Team with Mont Vernon and Amherst has started and it looks like 26 
Lyndeborough may be joining as well. He stated that training for 20 individuals was conducted. He also noted that 27 
the department received a State Interoperability Radio and the Field Communications Vehicle was used during the 28 
ice storm but it had issues, so now it is being stored at the fire house and used once a week. He further noted that the 29 
generator is up and running, was used during the ice storm, and was serviced in May with no issues. Chief Fraitzl 30 
noted that due to the ice storm some minor actions of the Emergency Operations Plan that need to be fixed were 31 
noted in the after meetings.  32 
 33 
In response to a question from Selectman Putnam, Chief Fraitzl stated that they are always looking at the training 34 
requirements but noted that most of the training he described is not mandatory. He also explained that if the 35 
department wants to keep their accreditation it cannot deviate from the State requirements and at a minimum he 36 
thinks that all firefighters need to be certified to a Fire Fighter I level for their own safety and for that of the public. 37 
 38 
6:30 p.m. – Request for Acceptance of Primex 5% Multi-Year Discount Program.   39 
Finance Director Jack Sheehy appeared before the Board and reviewed the different discounts the town is currently 40 
getting from Primex noting that they total $70,000. He further explained that if the Board were to approve the multi-41 
year contract they will be able to bid out all four contracts in spring of 2011. 42 
  43 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Daniels, Mr. Sheehy stated that the worker’s comp contract ends in 44 
2011, the health contract ends in 2010, and the unemployment contract ends in 2010.  45 
 46 
In response to question from Vice Chairman Daniels, Mr. Scaife stated that extending the contract gives the town an 47 
additional $7,500 in savings and puts them in the position to go out to bid in 2012.  48 
 49 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Daniels, Mr. Scaife stated that Primex did not offer a one year 50 
extension last year. 51 
 52 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Putnam and SECONDED by Selectman Bauer to accept the 5% multi year 53 
discount offered by Primex. 54 
Voting: 5 ayes; motion carried unanimously. 55 
 56 
 57 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 4

 1 
7:00 p.m. – Oval Area Parking Concerns.   2 
Chairman Finan explained that this item is a follow up to the last meeting at which merchants came to the Board 3 
about parking concerns on the oval. He noted that the Board has made no decisions at this point.  4 
Selectman Carmen thinks that it is great that the issue has been brought up. 5 
 6 
Vice Chairman Daniels brought forward a proposal that the interior of the oval be restricted to four hour parking 7 
with the rest being restricted to two hour parking. 8 
 9 
The Board opened the floor for public comment. 10 
 11 
David Ross stated that he does not see how the hourly change would make a difference and nothing has worked in 12 
the past; unless the town wants to tear down buildings and put in parking lots. He noted that no one is in the stores 13 
for more than 30 minutes and he never has a problem finding parking.  14 
 15 
Kylee Ross stated that she lives in 207 Union Square and she wants the business owners to thrive but her tenants 16 
have to park at Foodee's overnight and they cannot do so during business hours. She feels if there is going to be a 17 
parking ban there needs to be a place for them to park. She also noted that she feels that a lot of the blame has been 18 
put on her building. 19 
 20 
In response to a question from Chairman Finan, Ms. Ross stated that any parking provided in the well-lit area would 21 
be okay. 22 
 23 
In response to a question from Selectman Bauer, Ms. Ross stated that tenants do not park in the Congregational 24 
Church parking lot. Selectman Bauer suggested that it may be a possibility.  25 
 26 
Chairman Finan explained that Bill Parker suggested possibly using town property by the police station that could 27 
provide 25 parking spots. He noted that this could be a longer term option. 28 
 29 
Rick Gannis stated that two hour parking would be a detriment to their business, as people walk around town and 30 
need more time. He noted that three of the restaurants close at 2:00 p.m. and suggested that maybe a restriction is 31 
not needed after this point. He also suggested that signs be put up directing people to the additional parking.  32 
 33 
George Lawrence, owner of the Red Arrow, stated that he had not heard about anyone complaining about the 34 
parking. 35 
 36 
Chairman Finan stated the concerns came from merchants.  37 
 38 
Aaron Kaplan, who works at the computer store, stated in their case customers are lugging in something of 39 
significant weight and if they cannot find a spot nearby, they do not stop. He stated that it does make a difference if 40 
there is restricted parking. He suggested that a few 15 minute spots might strike a good balance and he does not 41 
think a lot of enforcement would be necessary. He stated that a two-hour parking restriction does not change the 42 
situation with his company except that it creates a hassle. He also noted that there used to be a loading zone sign but 43 
there is not one there anymore. 44 
 45 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Daniels as to how one could justify empty 15 minute parking spots, 46 
Mr. Kaplan stated that it would strike a good balance.  47 
 48 
Selectman Carmen stated that it seems like there is concern from Union Street to South Street but the merchants on 49 
the other side are not seeing an issue.  50 
 51 
Aaron Kaplan stated that tenants should have certain spots set aside, especially during the winter parking bans. 52 
 53 
Selectman Bauer has heard consistently that tenants are parking all day in spots that the businesses need and 54 
questioned what is feasible to enforce.   55 
 56 
Mr. Lawrence thinks that the extra parking lot is a great idea for employees also. 57 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 5

 1 
Chief Douglas explained that there was never an ordinance passed to have a loading zone and technically it is illegal 2 
anyways. He explained that it will take consistent fair enforcement and that legally anyone can load or unload with 3 
their flashers on, however he noted that it does create a congestion area if especially if a fire truck has to get out. 4 
 5 
In response to a question from Selectman Bauer, Chief Douglas stated that more time limits would not make it 6 
harder to enforce. 7 
 8 
In response to a question from Selectman Bauer, Chief Douglas stated that he thinks the two-hour parking 9 
restrictions were positive the last time they were in effect.  10 
 11 
In response to a question from Aaron Kaplan, Mr. Scaife stated town employees generally park in the Putnam 12 
parking lot or east and only as a last result do they park on the oval. 13 
 14 
Selectman Bauer stated that she thinks that if there were restricted parking some people will try to take advantage of 15 
the system, but most will not. 16 
 17 
In response to a question from Selectman Bauer, Chief Douglas stated that there is a revision in the ordinance that 18 
allows him to give permits for longer parking.  19 
 20 
Selectman Bauer noted that the town used to rent a parking lot for the employees but because of budgetary cuts they 21 
no longer rent it. 22 
 23 
Kevin Stephens, Union Street Grille, suggested that the photo shop have a laminated sign for their customers and 24 
that possibly people could park at Bales Street School when school is not in session. He stated that the big issue is 25 
tenants and employees parking on the oval as he has witnessed cars parked in front of his business for two days and 26 
he has had to make arrangements with other businesses for parking. 27 
 28 
Mr. Ross suggested making a parking lot in front of the Bales School where there is currently grass and moving the 29 
town employees out of the oval area. 30 
 31 
Selectman Bauer stated that the parking lot in front of Bales School has been mentioned previously, but in the past 32 
they have had a lot of resistance to the idea and there was a lot of feeling that the public wanted the town hall to stay 33 
here as it is a symbol of the downtown.  34 
 35 
Ron Kaplan suggested that a survey be sent to the different businesses as he feels that there are few people that 36 
would want the two- and four-hour restrictions.  37 
 38 
Chairman Finan stated that the Board will have at least three more meetings on this topic, the first of which will be 39 
at the Fifth Monday Forum next Monday, June 29 at 7:00 p.m. 40 
 41 
Don Olusick, Christian Science Reading Room, stated that in a time when business is not great it is not a good idea 42 
to create any more hurdles. He stated that the businesses should police themselves and the DO-IT group could 43 
maybe work with the townspeople. He also stated that the ban should not be for less than three or four hours and he 44 
suggested that the town offer out of state visitors a free pass as ticketing is not a friendly thing to do. 45 
 46 
Chairman Finan stated that businesses are being hurt by not being able to have parking. 47 
 48 
Paul Frank, Café on the Oval, stated that he is looking for restricted parking to help everyone out; tenants and 49 
workers should not be parking in front of the businesses. Mr. Frank thinks that two- and four-hour parking is a good 50 
idea and he thinks it worked well in the past.  51 
 52 
Selectman Bauer stated that she is afraid self policing does not work and while some employees will be 53 
conscientious, some will not.  54 
 55 
Ms. Ross stated that with the restriction, tenants can just move their car over two spots every two hours.   56 
 57 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 6

Mr. Scaife stated that it is not an issue of moving one spot over but rather when there are no parking spots in front 1 
of the restaurants, people do not stop for breakfast because they assume it is busy. 2 
 3 
Selectman Bauer stated that there is no perfect solution but they are trying to find a better solution and are not 4 
ignoring the tenant situation. 5 
 6 
Chairman Finan stated he thinks at some point it is a reasonable solution to have parking restrictions, but the town 7 
must provide additional long term parking at the same time. 8 
 9 
Aaron Kaplan stated that the two hour parking ban did nothing in the past and that no one has talked about the cost 10 
of enforcement; he does not think the cost is worth it.  11 
 12 
Rob Holsten stated that he likes the 20 minute loading spot suggestion and also asked what percentage of the 13 
parking is being taken up by permanent parking such as tenants and employees and therefore how many spots are 14 
left for customers. He also noted that a parking ban might drive the tenants with cars out of the apartments.  15 
 16 
Aaron Kaplan stated the Board should maybe consider renting parking again. 17 
 18 
Selectman Bauer noted that the location where they previously rented parking is not available for lease by the town 19 
but there are possibly 15 spaces for individual renting available. She also noted that if there is a restriction on 20 
parking, they need to make sure there is enough parking out of the restricted area.  21 
 22 
In response to a question from Selectman Putnam, Mr. Scaife stated that the area behind #1 Elm Street is not a 23 
viable option.  24 
 25 
Mr. Lawrence suggested that there is parking behind the two empty stores that the town could buy. Chairman Finan 26 
stated this option has been considered. 27 
 28 
Richard Morey stated he does not see the dollar value of enforcing a parking restriction and noted that he was here 29 
during the previous restriction and feels that there was a lot of discontent and if the town start putting in restrictions 30 
it will damage the friendly reputation of the community. 31 
  32 
Selectman Bauer stated the focus has not been about revenue but rather about trying to provide the most parking for 33 
people downtown.  34 
 35 
3.  PRESS AND PUBLIC COMMENTS (regarding items that are not on the agenda):    36 
Chairman Finan asked for pubic comment and heard none. 37 
 38 
4. DECISIONS: 39 
 a) CONSENT CALENDAR.   40 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Putnam and SECONDED by Vice Chairman Daniels to approve the consent 41 
calendar as follows:     42 

(1) Request to Amend May 26, 2009, Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes to Include Specific Lay Out Lan-43 
guage for  Request for Road Acceptance – Singer Brook Road.   44 

 45 
(2) Request for Annual Concurrence of Emergency Operations Plan.   46 

 47 
(3) Request to Approve Downtown Lunchtime Concert Series on the Oval, and for Businesses to Conduct Si-48 

dewalk Sales on Days of Lunchtime Concerts.  49 
 50 

(4) Request for Acceptance of Town Land Fund Donation.  51 
 52 

(5) Request to Approve Taxicab License (1).  53 
 54 

(6) Request to Approve Issuance of Timber Yield Tax Levy & Warrant (1).  55 
 56 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 7

(7) Request for Waiver of Hawkers & Peddlers Permit Requirement & Request for Approval to Erect a Banner 1 
at the Entrance to Keyes Field Park & on the Keyes Field Stage.  2 

 3 
(8) Acceptance of Unanticipated Funds Under $5,000 and Gifts Under $5,000 (31:95 (b & e)).  4 

 5 
Voting: 5 ayes; motion carried unanimously. 6 
 7 
 b) OTHER DECISIONS 8 
 9 

(1) Request for Three Selectmen Judges for Labor Day Parade.   10 
Selectman Putnam noted that the Commander of the VFW thought it would be nice to have three Selectmen judging 11 
the parade. Chairman Finan stated that he had Ms. Griska contact the LGC due to the fact that three selectmen is a 12 
quorum, and they said that there was no issue but that possibly they should post it. The Board agreed to judging and 13 
posting.  14 

 15 
(2) Request for Recognition of Centurion Citizen Via Proclamation & for Selectmen’s Atten-16 

dance to Present It.  17 
Chairman Finan stated that the Board has received a request to recognize Iris Thompson on her 100th birthday as the 18 
oldest African American in Milford on July 3rd at Boys and Girls Club.  19 
 20 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Putnam and SECONDED by Vice Chairman Daniels to recognize Iris Thomp-21 
son with the proposed proclamation. 22 
Voting: 5 ayes; motion carried unanimously.  23 
 24 
Selectman Bauer will present the proclamation.  25 
 26 
5.  TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: 27 
 28 

a) Single Stream/Recycling Update.    29 
Mr. Scaife stated that he attended the NRRA annual conference the week before last where they had a briefing on 30 
single stream but no new information was given except that the markets are slowly increasing and could possibly 31 
experience as much as 30% growth in next 12 months. He also noted that Bedford has joined in the co-op. 32 

 33 
b) Fletcher Site Remedy.     34 

Mr. Scaife stated that he received notice on June 15th from the EPA that the off-site remedy has been approved as it 35 
is less costly, safer, and a more flexible option. He also noted that this process has taken longer than he expected. 36 

 37 
c) Miscellaneous.  38 

Mr. Scaife explained that there was an error on some of the current use tax bills. He explained that several months 39 
ago the Department of Revenue adjusted the value ranges for current use but it was not done properly in the system. 40 
Roughly 317 parcels were affected but 38 had an inappropriate increase in taxes of $25 on average. He further 41 
explained that the town has written letters stating that they are glad to make the adjustment or the bill will self 42 
correct at the end of the year. He noted that the other properties averaged $1.77 higher than they were supposed to 43 
be. 44 
 45 
Mr. Scaife stated that the Walgreen’s traffic light has been adjusted so now when taking a right hand turn out of 46 
Shaw’s and Walgreens the light system starts after 15 seconds rather than 8 seconds.  He noted that once the 4 47 
second yellow light starts the green light sequence will happen even if the car pulls away during the yellow light. He 48 
also noted that there is a control box that needs to be replaced. He explained that the box was damaged in December 49 
but it was mistakenly thought the box was state property and an insurance claim will be put in to replace the box. In 50 
addition a post will be put in front of the box so that it will take the blow, not the box, in the future.  51 
 52 
Mr. Scaife stated that next Monday at 5:30 p.m. the Department of Environmental Services will have a 53 
representative present to discuss the removal of McLane dam including the ramifications and cost. He also noted 54 
that the pre-feasibility of hydropower is complete and he would like to schedule the engineer to talk to the Board. 55 
The Board decided to hold a special meeting on July 6th. 56 
 57 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 8

6.  DISCUSSIONS: 1 
 2 

a) Economic Development Advisory Committee Next Steps.    3 
The Board discussed incorporating TIFD, MIDC and possibly the Brox Community Property Development 4 
Committee into the EDAC. The Board also discussed who would be in charge of the website. 5 
 6 
Selectman Bauer stated that EDAC is waiting for the Board to be proactive and the Board is waiting for them to be 7 
proactive so she suggested they all get together and have a discussion. 8 

 9 
b) Potential JAG Grant Funding for Police Department Tasers.     10 

Chief Douglas appeared before the Board and explained that the department applied for the Justice Assistance Grant 11 
and received $13,358. He explained that last year he identified the need to go to a less lethal weapon system such as 12 
tasers but the regular duty weapon systems needed to be upgraded so that was what they used last years funds for. 13 
He stated that he would like to use this year’s grant money for the tasers. He explained that a lot of research has 14 
been done on the systems, and their success depends on the training received, which the department will provide. 15 
He stated that there has been a situation in the past where the Nashua SWAT had to come in and ended up using 16 
their tasers which ended the situation without anyone getting hurt. He also stated that he feels that tasers will 17 
prevent loss of work time due to an on-duty injury. 18 
 19 
In response to a question from Selectman Putnam, Chief Douglas stated that the grant will pay for 8 units and 14 20 
holsters. He explained that he anticipates they will only have 8 people on duty at a time and he is ordering extra 21 
holsters because they have been known to have issues. He also noted that the costs include training time, training 22 
gear, cleaning kit, and cartridges.  23 
 24 
Mr. Scaife noted that this is coming to the Board to be sure that the Board does not have an issue before a public 25 
hearing occurs. He also noted that he checked with the insurance carrier and the insurance has no issues with the 26 
tasers.  27 
 28 
In response to a question from Selectman Putnam, Chief Douglas stated that he is not sure as to the life expectancy 29 
of the machines but he thinks they become outdated before they no longer work.  30 
 31 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Daniels, Chief Douglas stated they will cost about $10,000 a year to 32 
maintain depending on how many cartridges are deployed, which he does not expect to be many. 33 
 34 
7. SELECTMEN’S REPORTS/DISCUSSIONS:  35 
 36 

a) FROM SPECIAL BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & SPECIAL COMMITTEES.    37 
Selectman Bauer stated that the Community Facilities Committee will be meeting with the Board on Monday 38 
August 31st to give the Board an update on the progress of their final report. She also noted that Keyes Pool had a 39 
fantastic open house.  40 
 41 
Vice Chairman Daniels stated that the process has been started to perambulate the Milford/Amherst boundary. He 42 
explained that Amherst abutters will be notified and Sarah Marchant will notify the Milford abutters that people will 43 
be walking on their lots. He noted that they are also getting a list of boundary markers and Sarah will be checking 44 
with NRPC as to whether the town can use their GPS system. 45 
 46 
A MOTION was made by Vice Chairman Daniels and SECONDED by Selectman Putnam to reactivate the solid 47 
recycling and solid waste committee. 48 
Voting: 5 ayes; motion carried unanimously.  49 
  50 
 b) OTHER ITEMS (that are not on the agenda).      51 
 52 
8.  APPROVAL OF FINAL MINUTES.   53 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Putnam and SECONDED by Vice Chairman Daniels to accept the minutes of 54 
May 11, 2009 as amended.  55 
Voting: 5 ayes; motion carried unanimously. 56 
 57 



6-22-09 MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - APPROVED 

 9

9. INFORMATION ITEMS REQUIRING NO DECISIONS 1 
 a) 4th of July Festivities Update and Invitation.   2 
 b) Treasurer’s Report – May, 2009.   3 
 4 
10. NON-PUBLIC SESSION (RSA 91-A:3, II(a)) – Personnel: 5 
A MOTION was made by Selectman Putnam and SECONDED by Selectman Bauer to enter into non-public session 6 
at 9:40 p.m. in accordance with RSA 91-A:3, II (a & e) for matter of personnel and legal discussions. 7 
Motion passed 5/0.  After discussion, Selectman Putnam moved to come out of non-public session at 10:06 p.m.  8 
Selectman Bauer seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0.  Upon coming out of non-public session it was 9 
announced that a personnel issue and a legal issue were discussed. 10 
 11 
11. ADJOURNMENT: 12 
 13 
There being no further business to come before this Meeting, Selectman Putnam moved to adjourn at 10:08 p.m.  14 
Selectman Bauer seconded.  All were in favor.  Motion passed 5/0. 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
____________________________   ___________________________________ 19 
Tim Finan, Chairman    Mike Putnam, Member 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
____________________________   ___________________________________ 24 
Gary Daniels, Vice Chairman   Katherine Bauer, Member 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
____________________________  29 
Nate Carmen, Member 30 


